
Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Agenda                 June 11, 2019 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 2019 – 6:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chair Billy Redding  
 
ROLL CALL:  Chair Billy Redding 
    Vice Chair Chris Barth 
    Commissioner Gina Oltman 
    Commissioner Trenton Whitman 
 Commissioner Karen Genzoli 
 
Staff to be Present: Lea Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 
    Ashton Gose, Deputy City Clerk  
    Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent    
 
FLAG SALUTE:  Chair Billy Redding 

 

   
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission on any item of 
interest to the public pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of 
residence for the record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their 
presentation. Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission cannot take action on matters not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 
54954.2 of the Government Code, items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more 
expeditiously by completing and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be 
obtained from the City Clerk.  

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
PARKS, RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT 

COMMISSION MEETING 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING PARKS, RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission are 
requested to complete one of the forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and 
submit it to the City Clerk. Filling out the card is voluntary.  
 



Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Agenda                 June 11, 2019 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

2. PRESENTATIONS: NONE. 
 
3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 

3.1:  Recommend that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 2019-XX, 
Approving the Application for Statewide Park Development and 
Community Revitalization Program Grant Funds.  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS:   
 
 4.1: Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 21, 2019. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
 
6. INFORMATION ITEMS:    NONE. 
  
7. COMMENTS:  
 

7.1: Staff Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  

Community Development Director: 
 
Deputy City Clerk: 
 
Public Works Superintendent: 
  

7.2: Commissioner Comments: (Information only- No Action) 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

June 12  City/Fire 2+2 Committee Meeting, Hughson Fire Protection 
District, 5:30 P.M. 

June 18  Planning Commission Meeting, City Council Chambers, 6:00 
P.M. 

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission in court, you 
may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this 
Agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           



Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Agenda                 June 11, 2019 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

June 24  Economic Development Committee Meeting, City Hall 
Chambers, 5:30 P.M. 

June 24  City Council Meeting, City Council Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

DATE:       June 7, 2019 TIME:                       9:00 A.M. 

NAME:      Ashton Gose   TITLE:               Deputy City Clerk 
              

 
 

Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  
 

Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official language for 
the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures Section 185, which 
requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is hereby given that all proceedings 
before the City of Hughson Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission shall be in English and 
anyone wishing to address the Commission is required to have a translator present who will take an oath 
to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English language. 
 
 
General Information: The Hughson Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission 

meets in the Council Chambers on the second Tuesday of each 
month at 6:00 p.m., unless otherwise noticed. 

 
Council Agendas: The Commission agenda is now available for public review at the 

City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 7018 
Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you 
need assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 
883-4054. Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  

http://www.hughson.org/


 

  
 
Meeting Date: June 24, 2019 
Subject: Recommend that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 

2019-XX Approving the Application for the Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization Program 
Grant Funds 

Presented By:  Lea C. Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 
 

 
Staff Recommendation : 
 
Recommend that the City Council approve the application for the Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization Program Grant Funds. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
On February 13, 2019 the Parks, Recreation, and Entertainment Commission voted 
to recommend to the City Council to approve a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Public Health Advocates (PHA) and the City of Hughson to have 
PHA and their design consultants, Kounkuey Design Initiative (KDI), apply for a grant 
on the city’s behalf to secure Proposition 68 funding for the modernization of Lebright 
Fields.  The MOU identified that PHA and KDI will provide architectural plans for the 
park and complete all the public outreach required for the grant participation. On 
February 25, 2019 the City Council approved the MOU with PHA.  This approval 
began the City’s relationship with PHA and the process they’ve engaged the 
community in over the past three months.   
 
To recap, PHA is a non-profit organization that promotes health equality and 
eliminates health disparities by transforming neighborhoods and schools into places 
that nurture public well-being.  PHA believes they can foster good health with 
improved neighborhood conditions and amenities for communities.  Better parks and 
better access to parks is part of the organization’s quest to bring health equality to 
underserved areas in California.  
 
PHA’s partner, KDI, is a non-profit design and community redevelopment 
organization. Both organizations believe that giving the community the opportunity 
to participate in the creation of parks in their neighborhoods will create better 
projects, develop a sense of ownership of the park by the community, and encourage 
stronger ties to local government and civic affairs.  Over the last three months PHA 
and KDI provided the City with the technical assistance it needs to properly engage 

 

PARKS, RECREATION AND ENTERTAIMENT 
COMMISSION 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 



 

the community in the development of Lebright Fields. The next step in this 
partnership will be the preparation and submission of a grant application for Round 
Three of the Statewide Park Program funding cycle. There is currently $254,942,000 
in funds available for reward throughout the state.  Only one in ten communities are 
awarded funds from this pool of money, making this a very competitive grant 
process.  PHA and KDI’s expertise in community outreach, combined with the grant 
writing expertise being offered by PHA, will give the City a competitive edge in this 
grant process.  
 
The Statewide Park Program grant application must be postmarked by August 5, 
2019.  Council approval of the Resolution and park design will allow PHA to 
complete the application and submit the park design in time for the August 5, 2019 
deadline.   
 
Discussion: 
 
PHA began public outreach for this grant with a survey that was distributed to various 
organizations throughout the City, placed on the City’s website and other social 
media sites, and distribute at the schools throughout Hughson.  PHA staff received 
approximately 300 responses.  These responses served as the basis for the first 
public outreach meeting which was held on April 4, 2019.  This survey asked the 
community to think about what makes a park enjoyable to them, what makes them 
feel safe at a park, asked them to think about what was missing from Lebright, and 
asked them to consider what they would like to see if they could plan the park.  This 
information was displayed for the participants at the first meeting.  The other two 
meetings were held on May 2, 2019 and May 23, 2019.  The public outreach 
meetings were planned with activities that built upon the activity from the meeting 
prior to it.  This approach helped focus the discussion at each meeting so that 
ultimately the City and PHA would have a working design to submit with the grant.   
 
At the April 4, 2019 meeting, 15 people were in attendance. Of the 15 people 
present, ten were members of the public, three were city staff members, one was a 
City Council Member, and one was a Parks Commissioner.  At this meeting 
participants identified amenities they would like to see at the park.  PHA asked the 
15 individuals to identify what type of safety concerns they had about the existing 
park, what type of features already existed that they wanted to keep, and what type 
of park features should be added to make it a place that the entire community would 
enjoy.  At the end of this meeting, PHA took the information collected at this meeting 
and used it to prepare for the second community meeting. 
 
The second community meeting was held on May 2, 2019.  Based on the input 
gathered from the ten participants at the first meeting, PHA created a “shopping list” 
of amenities that participants could “purchase” to add to the park design during the 
second meeting.  Each item was assigned a point value, which in turn had a 
monetary value.  Each person had a certain amount of points to spend on amenities 
based on a grant total PHA felt would make the City’s request competitive.  A total 
of 24 people were present at the meeting.  Of the 24, 16 were members of the public, 
five were city staff, two were City Council members, and one was a Parks 
Commissioner.  PHA explained that the suggested grant that the City should pursue 



 

was a $3 million-dollar grant.  The first $1.5 million dollars would go toward 
infrastructure, such as a parking lot, sidewalks, standard park lighting, fencing, 
benches, and overall landscaping.  The remaining $1.5 million dollars could be 
“spent” on desired park amenities.  The $1.5 million dollars roughly equaled to 250 
points to spend. Originally, the activity was first to be conducted on an individual 
basis- people would spend their 250 points without any input from the group.  Then 
it was anticipated that the individuals at each table would discuss how their points 
were spent and come to a consensus on the desired amenities as a group.  After 
this, it was expected that all of the tables in the room would come together as a 
whole and develop a final list of amenities. Given the low attendance at the meeting, 
individuals sat at one table and discussed the amenities they would like to see at the 
park.  PHA took the consensus of the table and created the wish list for those people 
at the meeting.  During this time PHA helpers went out to baseball practice at 
Lebright to gather more input on the park amenities.  Once the information from the 
park came back, the group at the meeting compared their shopping list to those 
members that voted at the park.  Then a vote was taken to determine what amenities 
would go in the park.  The participants ultimately voted on three small baseball fields 
(60 points), two large baseball fields (80 points), stadium lighting for one field (50 
points), a play fountain (40 points), and a field house (80 points).  The filed house 
includes a bathroom, concession area, and a 2,500 square foot room.  The total 
points spent that evening was 310 points, which was over the 250 originally planned 
by PHA.  PHA noted that going over the 250-point range would increase the amount 
of money the City would have to apply for the grant for.  PHA suggested that a larger 
amount may not be as competitive as a smaller amount.  With staff’s permission, 
PHA agreed to include the chosen amenities at whatever their costs and hope for 
the best.  
 
The third engagement meeting was held on May 23, 2019.  97 people attended this 
meeting: 85 members of the public, four Councilmembers, three City Staff members, 
three PHA Staff members, one Parks Commissioner, and one Planning 
Commissioner.  The goal of this meeting was to take the five voted on amenities 
from the second meeting and place them on a picture of Lebright to get an idea of 
where the amenities would go in the park.  At this meeting the 85 members of the 
public desired different amenities than those amenities picked by the 16 members 
of the public that attended the second meeting.  To complete the planned task, PHA 
asked that the participants place the chosen amenities on the park picture, and then 
provide additional comments on amenities.  Also, PHA provided additional amenity 
options that could be placed on site that would not increase the cost of the grant 
significantly but would make the grant application more competitive.  These items 
included exercise equipment, public art, picnic tables and grills, a small play 
structure, and a shade structure.  The placement of these items, along with the 
previously chosen items, were voted on by three large groups.  Out of these groups, 
three potential park designs emerged.  
 
On June 4, 2017, PHA held one more public meeting to display the final three 
designs developed at the previous meeting.  At this meeting 14 people attended- 11 
members of the public and three City Council Members.    Of the individuals that 
voted, Design #1 was favored.  Given that only 16 people voted on the final design, 
PHA sent the participants from the third meeting a link to the three designs to try to 



 

get more people to weigh-in on the final design.  The results of this survey were not 
tallied by the time this staff report was posted.  The results of the survey will be 
presented at the Commission meeting.   
 
It is important to note that one of the groups at the third meeting suggested keeping 
the existing T-Ball field.  Keeping the existing T-ball field would provide six fields 
instead of five fields at Lebright. This suggestion is reflected in Design 1.  Since the 
other two groups did not suggest this at the third meeting, it was not originally 
reflected on Designs 2 and 3.  However,  in an effort to address the growing concern 
over a sixth field, PHA and KDI added the T-ball field to all three plans for the survey.  
The additional field could be the reason that Design 1 was chose at the meeting.  
Now that all three designs have the T-ball field, the emailed survey results could 
vary. The Commission will have to decide if they want to honor the original design 
winner or support the plan that was voted on through the email survey. The results 
may not vary, but it is a possibility.  Either way, the Commission should include a 
preferred design in their recommendation to the City Council.   
 
The final cost estimate for the Lebright Modernization project is $3,255,000. This 
includes the amenities chosen by the public and the infrastructure costs that were 
not voted on but planned into the design (parking lot, basic lighting, sidewalks, 
benches, etc.).  This cost estimate includes rehabilitation of those baseball fields 
that were placed in the same spot as they exist now, rather than a complete 
reconstruction of those fields.  If the field was placed in a new location, then it was 
considered a new baseball field, and the costs reflect a “new” field, rather than a 
rehabilitated one.  The rehabilitation of fields in existing locations results in a cost 
savings for the design and helps keep the grant request in a cost range that will be 
more advantageous to the City.  The only field that will not be rehabilitated or rebuilt 
is the T-ball field.  This field will be left untouched.  This will keep the grant request 
down, but still accomplish the desire for an extra field.  The remaining cost are 
reflected in the attached cost estimate. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
During the approval of the City’s Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the 
beginning balances in the Park Development Impact Fee Fund and the Parkland In-
Lieu Fund was $428,482 and $634,428, respectively, for a total of $1,062,910.  To 
complete the purchase and sale agreement for the Lebright property, $298,169.50 
was wired to the Old Republic Title Company to be provided to the Hughson Unified 
School District upon closing of escrow.  This leaves a balance of $764,740.50 in 
funds for park acquisition and development. Based on the costs above, the City 
cannot afford to improve Lebright without some sort of grant funding.  If the 
Commission and Council choose to not support this grant, the City will not be able 
to improve Lebright until other funds are acquired, or other development projects 
contribute enough to these two funds through the collection of impact fees to 
subsidize the construction of amenities.  



 

The efforts of this project to date have not cost the City anything.  The outreach 
efforts and design efforts were completely funded by the California Wellness 
Foundation and the Gilbert Foundation. As such, PHA and KDI were able to offer 
their services pro-bono. Should the Commission and Council choose to not move 
forward with this process, the City will need to find funds to spend on site design and 
outreach, or secure a grant to cover these costs.   
 
 



CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HUGHSON CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE 
APPLICATION FOR STATEWAIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY 

REVITALIZATION PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS 
 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been 
delegated the responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the 
administration of the Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization 
Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing the application; and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks 
and Recreation require the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of the 
application before submission of said application to the State; and  

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of 
California to complete the Grant Scope project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Hughson City Council hereby 
approves the filing of an application for the Lebright Revitalization Project and: 

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement 
of any work on the project included in this application, the sufficient funds to 
complete the project; and 

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded, the Applicant has or will have sufficient 
funds to operate and maintain the project, and 

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the 
General Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration 
Guide; and 

4. Delegates the authority to the City Manager and/or Community Development 
Director to conduct all negotiations, sign and submit all documents, including, but 
not limited to applications, agreements, amendments, and payment requests, 
which may be necessary for the completion of the Grant Scope; and 

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

6. Will consider promoting inclusion per Public Resources Code §80001(b) (8 A-G). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Hughson City Council at a regular 
meeting thereof held on June 24, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTENTIONS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
             

JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 









































Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Minutes                  May 21, 2019  
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2019 – 6:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Chris Barth 
 
ROLL CALL:  Vice Chair Chris Barth  
 Commissioner Karen Genzoli 
 Commissioner Trenton Whitman 
 Commissioner Gina Oltman  
 
ABSENT: Chair Billy Redding 
    
STAFF PRESENT: Lea Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 
    Ashton Gose, Deputy City Clerk 
    Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent 
      
FLAG SALUTE:  Vice Chair Chris Barth 

 
   
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission on 
any item of interest to the public pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their 
name and city of residence for the record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) 
and make their presentation. Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the Parks & 
Recreation Commission cannot take action on matters not on the agenda, unless the action is 
authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, items of concern, which are not urgent 
in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by completing and submitting to the City Clerk a 
“Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained from the City Clerk.  
 
2. PRESENTATIONS: NONE. 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
SPECIAL PARKS, RECREATION & 

ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION MEETING 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Minutes                  May 21, 2019  
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: NONE. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS:   
 
 4.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 9, 2019. 
 
GENZOLI/OLTMAN   4-0-0-1 motion passes to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of April 9, 2019. 
 

4.2: Approval to Recommend that the City Council Approve a Road Closure 
and Allow Live Music on a Public Street for the Hughson Free Will Baptist 
Church’s Block Party. 

 
GENZOLI/WHITMAN    4-0-0-1 motion passes to recommend that City 
Council approve a road closure and allow live music on a public street for the 
Hughson Free Will Baptist Church’s Block Party.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE. 
 
6. INFORMATION ITEMS:     
 

6.1:  Discuss Next Steps for the Lebright Fields Modernization Project. 
 
Director Simvoulakis provided an update on the Lebright Fields Modernization 
Project.  
 
No action was taken.  
   
7. COMMENTS:  
 

7.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action)  
  

7.2: Commissioner Comments; (Information only- No Action) 
 
Commissioner Whitman acknowledged a new mural on the Soapy Bubbles Wash 
building.   

  
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Vice Chair Barth adjourned this meeting at 6:26 P.M. 
 
 
 
 



Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Minutes                  May 21, 2019  
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Parks, Recreation & Entertainment 
Commission regarding any item on this Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall 
located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

 
           CHRIS BARTH, Vice Chair 

 
 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 

 


	1.1 P&R Agenda 6-11-19
	AGENDA
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	4. NEW BUSINESS:
	4.1: Approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 21, 2019.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.
	6. INFORMATION ITEMS:    NONE.
	7. COMMENTS:


	City of Hughson
	Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers
	UNotice Regarding Non-English Speakers:

	3.1 Lebright staff report
	3.1a Lebright Resolution
	3.1b Lebright attachments
	4.1 Draft Minutes 5-21-19
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	4. NEW BUSINESS:
	4.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 9, 2019.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:   NONE.
	6. INFORMATION ITEMS:
	7. COMMENTS:


	City of Hughson
	Special Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers


